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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Marine Reservation Historic District is located in the northwesterly section 
of the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard west of the Hospital Reservation Historic District, 
The facility was established in this location in 1911. At its period of maximum 
historical development, prior to World. War II, the district contained the four 
properties included in this nomination and a barracks building which has been 
demolished. This latter building was a three and one half story brick structure 
with architectural influences similar to the remaining officers quarters. All the 
original Marine Reservation buildings faced the Marine parade ground, an open space 
located to the south and west. It has been retained as an undeveloped parcel, 
and is now used as a playfield.

The district consists of four quarters buildings of brick construction with Colonial 
Revival influences. These two story buildings utilize Georgian Colonial details, 
a style found along the eastern seaboard between the 1820's and 1840's. Quarters 
M-l, M-2 and M-3 were designed by Washington, D.C. architect J.H. DeDibour, in 1910. 
The buildings in the district are sited on a man-made ledge or bench cut into the 
shallow hillside. Each building has front, side and rear yards of lawn, native 
plantings and garden areas. Apart from the garages, which were built in the 1930's, 
there is no construction within this district dating from 1914.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Marine Reservation Historic District is significant because it contains all but one 
of the buildings representative of this function within the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard 
Shore Facility. Constructed between 1911 and 1914, the buildings in this district 
symbolize the role which the Marine Corps played as a security and training arm of the 
United States Navy, a function which began at the shipyard in 1896 and continued until 
1977, when the function was moved to Subase Bangor.

One year after the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard was established its founding commandant, 
Lieutenant Ambrose B. Wyckoff, requested a Marine detachment to provide yard security. 
It was not until 1896, however, that First Sergeant George Carter, along with twenty 
Marines, were sent to Bremerton. The Marine Reservation was established on what is 
now the corner of the yard bounded by Chester Avenue and the alley south of Burwell 
Street. By 1899, an officers quarters and barracks building had been constructed. 
As early as 1901, the Marine Corps commandant was recommending the removal of the 
reservation to a more desirable location. He argued that

by reason of the addition of numerous buildings required for yard purposes, and in 
connection with the docking of large ships, the marine barracks is becoming mor-a and 
more shut in, and that the location of the narracks has become undesirable, both 
for the comfort of the men and the difficulty of preserving proper discipline on 
account of the oroximity of the barracks to saloons, etc., immediately outside 
the station. (Annual Report, 1901. p.1219) . . 

The move was not authorized at this time. Instead, funds were allocated to add additional 
stories onto the barracks building.

Two events caused the Marine Reservation to be moved to its present location. The first 
was Executive Order 969 signed by President Theodore Roosevelt in 1908. This Order 
redefined the role which the Marine Corps was to play within the United States defense 
structure by expanding its duties beyond shore facility and shipboard security to 
defense activities outside the continental United States. The second was an expansion 
of the industrial area of the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard. The relocation of the Marine 
Reservation corresponded in time to the construction of Drydock No. 2 (1909-1913). 
This change in location was noted in the 1912 Annual Report (p.588).

In the act approved March 3, 1909, provision was made for a new barracks building 
and a contract entered into for its erection on May 29, 1911, at the contract 
price of $135,428. This building was turned over to the Marine Corps by the 
contractor and accepted May 30, 1912, four months prior to the date specified in 
the contract. A large amount of grading and clearing has been found necessary 
owing to the fact that the plat of ground where the barracks is located was 
practically a wilderness. This work is being done as rapidly as the appropriations 
will permit. The old barracks building at this station is being turned over to
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The Marine Reservation Historic District is located to the west of the Hospital 
Reservation Historic District and is bounded by Dewey Street and Doyen Street. The 
properties are located within the following Puget Sound Naval Shipyard grid 
references: K 35, J 35 and I 35.
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the Navy for use as a disciplinary barracks, and equipment for about 120 men was 
left therein at the time of transfer.

In addition to the barracks, three officers quarters were constructed. In 1914, a 
four-plex building for Marine bachelor officers was built east of the barracks. When 
the industrial yard was expanded through regrading in 1919 the original Marine barracks 
was demolished and the first officers quarters constructed in 1899 (Facility No. 615, 
Quarters S), was moved and is now part of the Officers' Row Historic District.

Four of the five Marine Reservation buildings remain within the Puget Sound Naval 
Shipyard (the barracks have been demolished). These properties symbolize the security 
and training functions which are considered a part of a naval shore facility. 
Activities related to the tradiitonal role of the Marine Corps continued at the Puget 
Sound Naval Shipyard from 1896 until 1977, when the Marine Reservation was relocated to 
Subase Bangor.
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SP86-01720-652-5

Acreage:
less than 1 
Verbal Boundary 
Description:
Between Doyen 
St. and Dewey 
St., between 
Bldgs. 654 & 
656.
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Bremerton West

CONTINUATION of SIGNIFICANCE
Building 652 was designed with "Georgian" details in a composition which reflects "Georgian/ 

Federal" design influences. Similar to Buildings 654 and 656, Building 652 is constructed 
of brick exterior with a small entry porch with doubled columns, mansard roof and flat arched 
openings and reflects "Georgian/Federal" elements.

Building 652 served as Marine Commandant Quarters until the Marine Reservation was perman­ 
ently removed from the shipyard. The building has maintained its prominent position overlooking 
the Parade Ground and now serves as Officer Quarters for the shipyard. The building is well 
maintained.

Surveyed by August Gene Grulich, A.I.A. Date Aug«st 1985
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& GARAGE 655
Alterations/Additions
(Remod-52;54,kit,llv.powder rm, wiring; 
75.wiring;79,repairs.)

DESIGNED BY J.H. De SIBOUR ARCHITECT WASHINGTON D.C. DATE 1910

DESCRIPTION : Condition Excellent Altered NO_ Original Site Yes

Building 655 is a s 
with gabled roof wi 
siding of asbestos 
fiberglass garage d 
is a concrete slab. 
was constructed in

ingle car garage 
.th cedar shingles, 
shingles and a 
oor. The floor 
Building 655 

1936.

Building 654, officer's quarters, is a rectangu­ 
lar, two story brick residence with attic. The red 
brick veneer over wood frame is laid in a common 
bond with 6th course headers. A projecting front 
porch measures the length of the front elevation. 
The building measures 46 feet by 38 feet with a 
porch of 46 feet by 18 feet. The porch is constructec 
with modified"Etruscan"columns supporting a flat 
roof with balustrade above. The building exhibits 
several"Georgian"details including the porch, flat 
brick arches with limestone keystone and sills and 
corbeled brick chimneys. The roof of the building 
is a mansard roof with composition shingles and 
hip roof dormers. Windows are wood double-hung 
in wood frames with 6 over 1 lights, dormer windows 
have been replaced with mill finish aluminum sliding 
windows. A continuous limestone band is formed by 
the window sills of the upper floor. At the rear 
of the residence there is a glazed-in porch contined 
within a balustrade of turned balusters.

The interior of 654 (M-2) consists of oak 
flooring on first and second floors, plaster on 
wood lath on walls and ceilings. Ceilings are 
9 ft high. Entry foyer contains stairway to second 
floor with painted balustrade. Above stairway is 
a central skylight. French doors with 10 lights 
separate foyer from living room. The fireplace 
has a wood mantle with brick surround and tile 
hearth. The kitchen has painted cabinets with plastic 
laminate countertop. The 3rd floor (attic) has 
painted wood floors.

Area of Significance MilitarySIGNIFICANCE • Period i900- 
M- xi2. is. 14. i

Building 654 was constructed with Buiding 652 and 656 in 1911 when the second Marine 
Reservation was established. The design of Building 654 exhibits "Georgian" detail in 
a "Georgian/Federal" influenced composition. Its colonaded porch, brick exterior and 
hipped mansard roof are composed is a symetrical composition. Building 654 and Building 
656 are identical compositions while 652 exhibits minor alterations to the composition. 
Building 654 was designed by architect J. H. DeSibour of Washington D.C. for the United 
States Marine Corp.

Building 654 served as Officers Quarters for the Marine Reservation. Construction 
of 654 as well as 652, 656 and the Marine Barracks Building 169 reflected a major expansion 
of the Marine personnel at the shipyard. This expansion was in response to the expanded 
role of the Marines as defined by Executive Order 969 in November of 1908. (cont'd on back)
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CONTINUATION of SIGNIFICANCE
Building 654 was sited with 652 and 656 on a ridge overlooking the newly created flat ground 

areas known as the Parade Ground.
Building 654 remained as Marine Officers Quarter until the termination of the Marine Reserva­ 

tion and the return of the Reservation property to the control of the shipyard. The building 
retains its position overlooking the Parade Ground. The building has been well maintained.

Surveyed by Date
August Gene Grullch, A.I.A. Aueust 1985
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(cont'd) a skylight. The bath has 
hexagonal tile. The attic has painted 
wood ( fir) floors and a bath with 
hexagonal tile floor and a claw-foot 
bathtub. The basement has concrete 
floor, brick exterior walls and plaster 
partitions. In the basement there is 
an old clothes dryer manufactured by 
the Chicago Dryer Co. titled Chicago 
"Francis" Dryer # 9356.

(continued on back)

Building 656, officer's quarters is a rectangu­ 
lar two story brick residence with attic. The red 
brick veneer over wood frame is laid in a common 
bond with 6th course headers. A projecting front 
porch measures the length of the front elevation. 
The building measures 46 feet by 38 feet with a 
porch of 46 feet by 18 feet. The porch is construct 
ed with modified"Etruscan"columns supporting a flat 
roof with balustrade above. The building exhibits 
several"Georgian"details, including the porch, flat 
brick arches with limestone keystone and sills, 
also corbeled brick chimneys. The roof of the build 
ing is a mansard roof with composition shingles 
and hip roof dormers. Windows are wood double-hung 
in wood frames with 6 over 1 lights. A continuous 
limestone band is formed by the window sills of 
the upper floor. At the rear of the residence there 
is a glazed-in porch contained within a balustrade 
of turned balusters.

The interior of Quarters 656 (M-3) consists 
of oak floors on the first and second floors and 
painted wood (fir) in the attic. All walls are 
plaster on wood lath. The entry contains a central 
stairway to the upper floors and entry via double 
pocket doors to the living room and library. There 
are fireplaces in the living room, dining room and 
library of similar design which include wood surroun 
and mantle. The ceiling height is 9 feet. Double 
pocket doors are between living room and dining 
room. The kitchen has vinyl floor, painted wood 
cabinets and plastic laminate countertops. The stair 
way has painted square newel posts and square spindl 
The second floor has a 9 foot ceiling and contains

Period 1900- Area of Significance mutaSIGNIFICANCE:
11. v!2. I3. I4. I

Building 656 was constructed with Building 652 and 654 in 1911 when the second Marine 
Reservation was established. The design of Building 656 exhibits "Georgian" detail in 
a "Georgian/Federal" influenced composition. Its colonaded porch, brick exterior and 
hipped mansard roof are composed in a symetrical composition. Building 656 and Building 
654 are identical compositions while 652 exhibits minor alterations to the composition. 
Building. 656 was designed by architect J.H. DeSibour of Washington D.C. for the United 
States Marine Corp.

Building 656 served as Officers Quarters for the Marine Reservation. Construction 
of 656 as well as 652, 654 and the Marine Barracks Building 169 reflected a major expansior

(cont'd on back)
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Garage 657, constructed in 1936, with sign "M7" is a gable roofed, one car garage with cedar 
shingles on the roof and asbestos shingles for siding. The floor is a conrete slab.

CONTINUATION of SIGNIFICANCE
of the Marine personnel at the shipyard. This expansion was in response to the expanded 

role of the Marines as defined by Executive Order 969 in November of 1908.
Building 656 was sited with 652 and 654 on a ridge overlooking the newly created flat ground 

area known as the Parade Ground. Building 656 remained as Marine Officers Quarters until the 
termination of the Marine Reservation and the return of the Reservation property to the control 
of the shipyard. The building retains its position overlooking the Parade Ground. The building 
has been well maintained.

Surveyed by Aui«st Gene Gruiich, A.I.A. pate August
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MARINE OFFICER'S QUARTERS
M4, M4A, M4B, MAC, M4D

Facility
No.

658

NAME OF STRUCTURE OFFICER'S QUARTERS & GARAGE 659 
Construction Date 1914
Uses'Original Marine Officers QuartersWWII —————————————

Present Officers Quarters

Alterations/Additions
(Alt-50, stair 7 porches) 
(Remod-52,roof;61,kit;62,klt;79,roof, 
whole house repair)

DESIGNED BY UNITED STATE NAVY YARD. PUGET SOUND WASHINGTON DATE 1913 
DESCRIPTION '• Condition Excellent Altered Yes Original Site Yes

XX

(cont'd) living and dining rooms. Kit­ 
chens of all units are slightly differ­ 
ent with cabinets of painted wood or 
stained/varnished wood, VAT on all kit­ 
chen floors. The attic is half unfin­ 
ished and half with bedroom and central 
hallway with bath. The basement is open 
unused storage with concrete floor, 
walls and columns. Interior stair is
gl-ppl . frnn1-'H on Ha^T/;'*________________

Building 658, Officer's Quarters, is a four 
residence, two story brick, veneer over wood frame 
building with attic and basement. The brick is 
dark red common and laid in a running bond. The 
building exhibits"Georgian"influences in design. 
The entry doors are wooden doors and frames with 
lights in upper portions with side lights. The 
main entry is crowned with an oval fanlight con­ 
structed of wood. Windows are double-hung wood 
sash with 6 over 1 lights. The window heads are 
flat arched with limestone keystone and limestone 
sills. The exterior walls rest on a concrete 
base forming basement walls. The attic is enclosed 
with gable and hip roof sections and contains 
dormers crowned with hip roofs. The dormers are 
sided with 8 inch bevel siding containing double- 
hung wooden windows with 3 over 2 lights. Covered 
exterior porches are inset in the exterior walls. 
The porches are formed by two exterior walls of 
the building and a square corner pier of brick. 
Railings of the porches are wrought iron.

Building 658 is composed of four single floor 
units (two up/two down). One entry foyer serves 
units M4A and M4C and another serves M4B and M4D. 
The foyers have enlayed marble floors. Each unit 
has oak floors, plaster on wood lath walls and 
ceilings. Each unit entry has crown moldings 
at the ceiling. The fireplace contains wood mantle, 
flanking openings are two fluted columns. The 
hearth is stained concrete in a tile pattern. Ceiling; 
are 9 ft in height. Baths have hexagonal white 
tile floors and retangular tile wainscot. Bath 
thresholds are marble. Sliding pocket doors separate

Area of Significance MilitarySIGNIFICANCE * Period i9qo- 
|1- 12^ is. I4. i

Building 658 was the first four-plex constructed as quarters. Constructed for Marine 
Officers, it was one of five original quarters' buildings for the new Marine Reservation 
established in 1910. Constructed in 1910 it served as quarters for Bachelor Marine Officer 
until 1924 when it was assigned as Apartment House for Marine Corp.

Building 658 reflects the "Georgian/Federal" influences of the other Marine quarters 
but was designed by the Navy Yard Puget Sound under the direction of Public Works Officer, 
Captain L.E. Gregory, U.S.N. The design is composed of four units, two over two, in 
a configuration of two stories with additional spaces in the attic and basement. The 
design has a symetrical front and rear with the main entry on the sides. The "Georgian"

(cont'd on Back)
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Building 659 serves as garage for Building 
568 . The garage was constructed in 1947.

CONTINUATION of SIGNIFICANCE
details of brick walls with white painted windows and doors are consistant with buildings of 
similar design including 652,654 and 656,

Building 658 is the last remaining major structure of the Marine Reservation (several 
garages were constructed later) and completes the composition. The building has experienced 
modernization of its plumbing and wiring. The building has been well maintained.

Surveyed by August Gene Grulich, A. I.A. Date August 1985


